GARTNER INC Form DEF 14A April 18, 2011

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A (Rule 14a-101)

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant x Filed by a Party other than the Registrant o

Check the appropriate box:

- o Preliminary Proxy Statement
- o Confidential, For Use of the Commission only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- o Definitive Additional Materials
- o Soliciting Material Pursuant to Rule 14a-12

GARTNER, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- x No fee required.
- o Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
 - (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
 - (2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
 - (3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined:
 - (4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
 - (5) Total fee paid:
- o Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
- o Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
 - (1) Amount Previously Paid:
 - (2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
 - (3) Filing Party:
 - (4) Date Filed:

April 18, 2011

Dear Stockholder:

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of Gartner, Inc., I invite you to attend our 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Thursday, June 2, 2011, at 10 a.m. local time, at our corporate headquarters at 56 Top Gallant Road, Stamford, Connecticut.

Details of the business to be conducted at the meeting are given in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement which follow this letter.

We have mailed to our stockholders a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials containing instructions on how to access our 2010 Annual Report to Stockholders and our Proxy Statement online, how to request a paper copy of these materials and how to vote on the five management Proposals put before you this year. In addition, by following the additional instructions in the Proxy Statement, stockholders may request proxy materials electronically by email or in printed form by mail on an ongoing basis.

Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we urge you to vote your shares, regardless of the number of shares you hold, by utilizing the voting options available to you as described in the Proxy Statement.

If you have any questions about the meeting, please contact our Investor Relations Department at (203) 316-6537.

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting.

Sincerely,

Eugene A. Hall Chief Executive Officer

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Date:	Thursday, June 2, 2011

Location: 56 Top Gallant Road

Stamford, Connecticut 06902

10:00 a.m. local time

Matters To Be Voted On: (1) Election of ten members of our Board of Directors;

(2) Advisory vote on executive compensation;

(3) Advisory vote on the frequency of future stockholder advisory votes on executive compensation:

(4) Approval of the 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; and

(5) Ratification of the selection of KPMG LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011.

Record Date: April 7, 2011 You are eligible to vote if you were a stockholder of record on this

date.

Voting Methods: By Internet go to www.proxyvote.com and follow instructions

By Telephone call **1-800-690-6903**, 24 hours a day, and follow instructions **By Mail** if you received your proxy materials by mail, complete and sign your proxy card and return in enclosed envelope or mail to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51

Mercedes Way, Edgewood, N.Y. 11717

In Person attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person

Importance Of Vote: Submit a proxy as soon as possible to ensure that your shares are represented. If

your shares are held in street name, we urge you to instruct your broker how to vote

your shares.

Voting promptly will insure that we have a quorum at the meeting and will save us

additional proxy solicitation expenses.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Lewis G. Schwartz Corporate Secretary

Time:

Stamford, Connecticut April 18, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OFNEDAL INFORMATION	
GENERAL INFORMATION The Advanced Management Property of the Company of the Compan	- 1
The Annual Meeting and Proposals	
Information Concerning Proxy Materials and the Voting of Proxies	
PROPOSAL ONE: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Consult Information About Our Board of Directors and Naminae	5
General Information About Our Board of Directors and Nominees	5
Information About Director Nominees	5
Compensation of Directors Director Compensation Table	8
Director Compensation Table Recommendation of Our Record	8
Recommendation of Our Board CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	9
	9
<u>Director Independence</u> Board Leadership Structure	10
Risk Oversight	10
Board and Committee Meetings and Annual Meeting Attendance	10
Committees Generally and Charters	10
Governance/Nominating Committee	11
Audit Committee	11
Compensation Committee	12
Director Stock Ownership Guidelines	13
Code of Ethics	13
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	13
General Information About Our Executive Officers	13
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	15
Executive Summary	15
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	17
Compensation Committee Report	24
Summary Compensation Table	25
Other Compensation Table	26
Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table	27
Employment Agreements With Executive Officers	28
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change In Control	30
Terms of Awards to Executive Officers	32
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table	32
Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table	34
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table	34
Equity Compensation Plan Information	35
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	36
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	37
Transactions With Related Persons	37
PROPOSAL TWO: ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	38
Recommendation of Our Board	39
PROPOSAL THREE: ADVISORY VOTE ON THE FREQUENCY OF FUTURE STOCKHOLDER ADVISORY VOTES	
ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	39
Recommendation of Our Board	40
PROPOSAL FOUR: APPROVAL OF THE 2011 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN	40
<u>Plan Summary</u>	40
Participation in Plan Benefits	43
Recommendation of Our Board	43
PROPOSAL FIVE: RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS	44
Principal Accountant Fees and Services	44
Audit Committee Report	45
Recommendation of Our Board	45
MISCELLANEOUS	45
Stockholder Communications	45
Available Information	45
Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder Proposals for Our 2012 Annual Meeting	45
Annual Report	46
Other Business	46

56 Top Gallant Road Stamford, Connecticut 06902

PROXY STATEMENT

For the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 2, 2011

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE ANNUAL MEETING AND PROPOSALS

The 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Gartner, Inc. will be held on Thursday, June 2, 2011, for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and described in greater detail below. This Proxy Statement and form of proxy, together with our 2010 Annual Report to Stockholders, are being furnished in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of proxies to be used at the meeting and any adjournment of the meeting, and are first being made available to our stockholders on or around April 18, 2011. We will refer to your company in this Proxy Statement as we, us, the Company or Gartner.

The five proposals to be considered and acted upon at the Annual Meeting, which are described in more detail in this Proxy Statement, are:

- The election of ten nominees to our Board of Directors;
- A stockholder advisory vote on executive compensation;
- A stockholder advisory vote on the frequency of future stockholder advisory votes on executive compensation;
- Approval of the 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; and
- Ratification of the selection of KPMG LLP as our independent auditors for the 2011 fiscal year.

INFORMATION CONCERNING PROXY MATERIALS AND THE VOTING OF PROXIES

Why Did You Receive a Notice Regarding Availability of Proxy Materials?

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules allow companies to furnish proxy materials to their stockholders via the Internet. This e-proxy process expedites stockholders receipt of proxy materials, while significantly lowering the costs and reducing the environmental impact of our annual meeting. Accordingly, on April 18, 2011, we mailed to our stockholders a notice regarding the availability of proxy materials (the Notice). If you received a Notice, you will not receive a printed copy of the proxy materials unless you request one. The Notice provides instructions on how to access our proxy materials for the 2011 Annual Meeting on a website, how to request a printed set of proxy materials and how to vote your shares. We expect to shortly mail paper copies of our proxy materials to certain stockholders who have already elected to receive printed materials.

How Can You Get Electronic Access to Proxy Materials?

The Notice provides instructions regarding how to view our proxy materials for the 2011 Annual Meeting online. As explained in greater detail in the Notice, to view the proxy materials and vote, you will need to visit: **www.proxyvote.com** and have available your 12-digit Control number(s) located on your Notice.

How Can You Request Paper or Email Copies of Proxy Materials?

If you received a Notice by mail, you will not receive a printed copy of the proxy materials in the mail. If you want to receive paper or email copies of the proxy materials, you must request them. There is no

charge for requesting a copy. To facilitate timely delivery, please make your request on or before May 19, 2011. To request paper or e-mail copies, stockholders can go to **www.proxyvote.com**, call **1-800-579-1639** or send an email to **sendmaterial@proxyvote.com**. Please note that if you request materials by email, send a blank email with your 12-digit Control number(s) (located on your Notice) in the subject line.

How Can You Sign Up to Receive Future Proxy Materials Electronically?

You have the option to receive all future proxy statements, proxy cards and annual reports electronically via email or the Internet. If you elect this option, the Company will only mail materials to you in the future if you request that we do so. To sign up for electronic delivery, please follow the instructions below under How Can You Vote to vote using the Internet and vote your shares. After submitting your vote, follow the prompts to sign up for electronic delivery.

Who Can Vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 7, 2011 (the Record Date) may vote at the Annual Meeting. As of the Record Date, there were 97,260,173 shares of our common stock, par value \$.0005 per share (Common Stock) outstanding and eligible to be voted. Treasury shares are not voted.

How Can You Vote?

You may vote using one of the following methods:

- Internet. You may vote on the Internet up until 11:59 PM Eastern Time on June 1, 2011 by going to the website for Internet voting on the Notice or your proxy card (www.proxyvote.com) and following the instructions on your screen. Have your Notice or proxy card available when you access the web page. If you vote by the Internet, you should not return your proxy card.
- **Telephone.** You may vote by telephone by calling the toll-free telephone number on your proxy card **(1-800-690-6903)**, 24 hours a day and up until 11:59 PM Eastern Time on June 1, 2011, and following prerecorded instructions. Have your proxy card available when you call. If you vote by telephone, you should not return your proxy card.
- Mail. If you received your proxy materials by mail, you may vote by mail by marking the enclosed proxy card, dating and signing it, and returning it in the postage-paid envelope provided or to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, N.Y. 11717.
- In Person. You may vote your shares in person by attending the Annual Meeting and submitting your proxy at the meeting. All shares that have been voted properly by an unrevoked proxy will be voted at the Annual Meeting in accordance with your instructions. If you sign and submit your proxy card, but do not give voting instructions, the shares represented by that proxy will be voted for each proposal as our Board recommends.

How to Revoke Your Proxy or Change Your Vote

A later vote by any means will cancel an earlier vote. You can revoke your proxy or change your vote before your proxy is voted at the Annual Meeting by:

- giving written notice of revocation to: Corporate Secretary, Gartner, Inc., 56 Top Gallant Road, P.O. Box 10212, Stamford, Connecticut 06904-2212; or
- submitting another timely proxy by the Internet, telephone or mail; or
- attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record, to vote at the Annual Meeting you must obtain a proxy executed in your favor from the holder of record and bring it to the Annual Meeting in order to vote. Attendance at the Annual Meeting will not, by itself, revoke your prior proxy.

How Many Votes You Have

Each stockholder has one vote for each share of our Common Stock that he or she owned on the Record Date for all matters being voted on.

If Your Shares Are Held in Street Name, How Will Your Broker Vote?

Holders of shares held in brokerage or street name accounts should be aware of changes in voting rules that will affect whether their shares will be voted on the Proposals submitted at the meeting. Under applicable New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) rules relating to the discretionary voting of proxies by brokers, brokers are not permitted to vote shares with respect to the election of directors, executive compensation, frequency voting on executive compensation and employee stock purchase plans, without instructions from the beneficial owner. However, brokers will still be able to vote shares held in brokerage accounts with respect to the ratification of the selection of an independent registered public accounting firm, even if they do not receive instructions from the beneficial owner. Therefore, holders of shares held in brokerage or street name accounts are advised that, if they do not timely provide instructions to their broker, their shares will not be voted in connection with Proposals One, Two, Three and Four. Generally, broker non-votes occur on a matter when a broker is not permitted to vote on that matter without instructions from the beneficial owner and instructions are not given.

Quorum

A quorum is constituted by the presence, in person or by proxy, of holders of our Common Stock representing a majority of the number of shares of Common Stock entitled to vote. Abstentions and broker non-votes (described above) will be considered present to determine the presence of a quorum.

Votes Required

Proposal One: In the election of directors, the ten persons receiving the highest number of affirmative FOR votes at the Annual Meeting will be elected.

Proposals Two, Four and Five: The affirmative FOR vote of a majority of the votes cast is required to approve Proposal Two the advisory (non-binding) vote on executive compensation; Proposal Four the approval of the 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; and Proposal Five the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011.

Proposal Three: With respect to Proposal Three the advisory (non-binding) vote on the frequency of future stockholder advisory votes on executive compensation, the alternative receiving the greatest number of votes, or a plurality of the votes every year, every two years or every three years will be the frequency that stockholders approve.

If any other matters are brought properly before the Annual Meeting, the persons named as proxies in the accompanying proxy card will have the discretion to vote on those matters for you. If for any reason any of the nominees is not available as a candidate for director at the Annual Meeting, the persons named as proxies will vote your proxy for such other candidate or candidates as may be nominated by the Board of Directors. As of the date of this Proxy Statement, we were unaware of any other matter to be raised at the Annual Meeting.

What Are the Recommendations of the Board?

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the election of the ten nominees to our Board of Directors, FOR the approval of executive compensation, FOR the recommendation to hold an advisory vote on executive compensation every third year, FOR approval of the 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and FOR the ratification of the selection of KPMG LLP as our independent auditor for fiscal 2011.

Who Is Distributing Proxy Materials and Bearing the Cost of the Solicitation?

This solicitation of proxies is being made by the Board of Directors and we will bear the entire cost of this solicitation, including costs associated with mailing the Notice and related Internet access to proxy materials, the preparation, assembly, printing, and mailing of this Proxy Statement, the proxy card, and any additional solicitation material that we may provide to stockholders. Gartner will request brokerage

firms, fiduciaries and custodians holding shares in their names that are beneficially owned by others to solicit proxies from these persons and will pay the costs associated with such activities. The original solicitation of proxies may be supplemented by solicitation by telephone, electronic mail and other means by our directors, officers and employees. No additional compensation will be paid to these individuals for any such services. We have also retained Georgeson Inc. to assist with the solicitation of proxies at an anticipated cost of \$8,500 which will be paid by the Company.

Where can I find the voting results of the Annual Meeting?

We will also disclose voting results on a Form 8-K filed with the SEC within four business days after the 2011 Annual Meeting, which will also be available on our investor relations website **www.investor.gartner.com**.

Where can I find information concerning the Company s decision with respect to the frequency of future stockholder advisory votes on executive compensation?

We will disclose the Company s decision with respect to the frequency of future stockholder advisory votes on executive compensation on an amendment to the Form 8-K that reports the voting results of the Annual Meeting, which will be filed within 150 days after the 2011 Annual Meeting.

Who Can Answer Your Questions?

If you have questions about this Proxy Statement or the Annual Meeting, please call our Investor Relations Department at (203) 316-6537.

PROPOSAL ONE:

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND NOMINEES

Our Board, acting through the Governance/Nominating Committee, is responsible for assembling for stockholder consideration each year a group of nominees that, taken together, has the experience, qualifications, attributes and skills appropriate and necessary to carry out the duties and responsibilities of, and to function effectively as, the board of directors of Gartner. The Governance Committee regularly reviews the composition of the board in light of the needs of the Company, its assessment of board and committee performance, and the input of stockholders and other key stakeholders. The Governance Committee looks for certain common characteristics in all nominees, including integrity, strong professional experience and reputation, a record of achievement, constructive and collegial personal attributes and the ability and commitment to devote sufficient time and effort to board service. In addition, the Governance Committee seeks to include on the board a complementary mix of individuals with diverse backgrounds and skills that will enable the board as a whole to effectively manage the array of issues it will confront in furtherance of its duties. These individual qualities can include matters such as experience in the technology industry; experience managing and operating large public companies; financial, accounting, executive compensation and capital markets expertise; and leadership skills and experience.

Our Board currently has ten directors who serve for annual terms. All of the nominees listed below are incumbent directors who have been nominated by the Governance Committee and Board for re-election, and have agreed to serve another term. If any nominee is unable or declines unexpectedly to stand for election as a director at the Annual Meeting, proxies will be voted for a nominee designated by the present Board to fill the vacancy. Each person elected as a director will continue to be a director until the 2012 Annual Meeting or until a successor has been elected.

Michael J. Bingle
Richard J. Bressler
Karen E. Dykstra
Russell P. Fradin
Anne Sutherland Fuchs
William O. Grabe
Eugene A. Hall
Stephen G. Pagliuca
James C. Smith
Jeffrey W. Ubben

Our CEO, Eugene A. Hall, has an employment agreement with the Company that obligates the Company to include him on the slate of nominees to be elected to our Board during the term of the agreement. See Executive Compensation Employment Agreements with Executive Officers. There are no other arrangements between any director or nominee and any other person pursuant to which the director or nominee was selected. None of our directors or executive officers is related to another director or executive officer by blood, marriage or adoption.

INFORMATION ABOUT DIRECTOR NOMINEES

The name, age, principal occupation for the last five years, public company board experience, selected additional biographical information and period of service as a director of the Company of each of the nominees for election as a director are set forth below. Additionally, set forth below is a summary of each director s experience, qualifications and background which, among other factors, support their respective qualifications to continue to serve on our Board.

Michael J. Bingle, 39, has been a director since October 2004. Mr. Bingle is a Managing Director of Silver Lake, a private equity firm that he joined in January 2000. Prior thereto, he was a Principal with Apollo Management, L.P., a private investment partnership, and an investment banker at Goldman, Sachs & Co., an investment banking firm. He is a director of several private companies, and a former director of TD Ameritrade Holding Corporation and several private companies. Mr. Bingle s investing, investment banking and capital markets expertise, coupled with his extensive working knowledge of Gartner (a former Silver

Lake portfolio company), its financial model and core financial strategies, provide valuable perspective and guidance to our Board and Governance Committee, and qualify him to continue to serve as director.

Richard J. Bressler, 53, has been a director since February 2006. Mr. Bressler joined Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., a private equity firm, as a Managing Director in 2006. From May 2001 through 2005, Mr. Bressler was Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Viacom Inc. Prior to joining Viacom, Mr. Bressler was Executive Vice President of AOL Time Warner Inc. and Chief Executive Officer of AOL Time Warner Investments. Prior to that, Mr. Bressler served in various capacities with Time Warner Inc., including as Chairman and Chief Executive of Time Warner Digital Media and as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Time Warner Inc. Before joining Time Warner Inc., Mr. Bressler was a Partner with Ernst & Young. Mr. Bressler is a director of Warner Music Group Corp., The Nielson Company B.V. and CC Media Holdings, Inc., and a former director of America Media Operations, Inc. He is also a Board Observer of Univision Communications, Inc. Mr. Bressler qualifies as an audit committee financial expert, and his extensive financial and operational roles at large U.S. public companies bring a wealth of management, financial, accounting and professional expertise to our Board and Audit Committee, and qualify him to continue to serve as director.

Karen E. Dykstra, 52, has been a director since July 2007. From January 2007 until December 2010, Ms. Dykstra had been a Partner of Plainfield Asset Management LLC (Plainfield), and she served as Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Plainfield Direct LLC, Plainfield s business development company, from May 2006 to 2010. Prior thereto, she spent over 25 years with Automatic Data Processing, Inc., serving most recently as Chief Financial Officer from January 2003 to May 2006, and prior thereto as Vice President Finance, Corporate Controller and in other capacities. Ms. Dykstra is also a director of Crane Co. and AOL, Inc. Ms. Dykstra qualifies as an audit committee financial expert, and her extensive management, financial, accounting and oversight experience provide important expertise to our Board and Audit Committee, and qualify her to continue to serve as director.

Russell P. Fradin, 55, has been a director since June 2007. Since October 2010, he has been Chairman and CEO of AON Hewitt, a provider of HR business process outsourcing and related consulting services. From September 2006 to October 2010, he was Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Hewitt Associates, Inc. From February 2004 until joining Hewitt, he was President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Bisys Group, Inc., a provider of outsourcing solutions to investment firms, insurance companies and banks. Before joining Bisys, Mr. Fradin held various senior positions at Automatic Data Processing, Inc., most recently as President of its Global Employer Services Group. Additionally, he spent 18 years at McKinsey & Company, serving most recently as Director. Mr. Fradin s extensive executive management and operations expertise in technology-related companies, as well as his knowledge of executive compensation practices and issues, provide an important perspective to our Board and Compensation Committee, and qualify him to continue to serve as director.

Anne Sutherland Fuchs, 63, has been a director since July 1999. She is currently Group President of the Growth Brands Division of J.C. Penney, which pursues high potential opportunities in the digital retail sector. She also serves as the Chair of the Commission on Women s Issues for New York City, a position she has held since 2002. Previously, Ms. Fuchs served as a consultant to companies on branding and digital initiatives, and as a senior executive with operational responsibility at LVMH Moët Hennessy Louis Vuitton, Phillips de Pury & Luxembourg and several publishing companies, including Hearst Corporation, Conde Nast, Hachette and CBS. Ms. Fuchs is also a director of Pitney Bowes Inc. Ms. Fuchs executive management, content and branding skills plus operations expertise, her knowledge of government operations and government partnerships with the private sector, and her keen interest and knowledge of diversity, governance and executive compensation matters provide important perspective to our Board and its Governance and Compensation Committees, and qualify her to continue to serve as director.

William O. Grabe, 72, has been a director since April 1993. Mr. Grabe is an Advisory Director of General Atlantic LLC, a global private equity firm. Prior to joining General Atlantic in 1992, Mr. Grabe was a Vice President and Corporate Officer of IBM Corporation. Mr. Grabe is presently a director of Compuware Corporation and Lenovo Group Limited, as well as several private companies which are portfolio companies of General Atlantic. He is a former director of LHS AG, Infotech Enterprises Limited, Patni Computer Systems Ltd. and Digital China Holdings Limited. Mr. Grabe s extensive senior executive

experience, his knowledge of business operations and his vast knowledge of the global information technology industry have made him a valued member of the Board and Governance Committee, and gualify him to continue to serve as director.

Eugene A. Hall, 54, has been our Chief Executive Officer and a director since August 2004. Prior to joining Gartner, Mr. Hall was a senior executive at Automatic Data Processing, Inc., a Fortune 500 global technology and service company, serving most recently as President, Employers Services Major Accounts Division, a provider of human resources and payroll services. Prior to joining ADP in 1998, Mr. Hall spent 16 years at McKinsey & Company, most recently as Director. As Gartner s CEO, Mr. Hall is responsible for developing and executing on the Company s operating plan and business strategies in consultation with the Board of Directors and for driving Gartner s business and financial performance, and, therefore, is qualified to continue to serve as the principal management representative on the Board.

Stephen G. Pagliuca, 56, has served as a director from July 1990 (except for a six month hiatus beginning in late 2009 when he entered the Massachusetts U.S. Senate race). Mr. Pagliuca is a Managing Director of Bain Capital Partners, LLC and is also a Managing Partner and an owner of the Boston Celtics basketball franchise. Mr. Pagliuca joined Bain & Company in 1982, and founded the Information Partners private equity fund for Bain Capital in 1989. Prior to joining Bain, Mr. Pagliuca worked as a senior accountant and international tax specialist for Peat Marwick Mitchell & Company in the Netherlands. Mr. Pagliuca is a director of HCA, Inc. (Hospital Corporation of America) and a former director of Warner Chilcott PLC and Quintiles Transnational Corporation. Mr. Pagliuca has served on our Board since Gartner first became a public company (except during his recent run for public office). He has deep subject matter knowledge of Gartner s history, the development of its business model and the global information technology industry, as well as financial and accounting matters, all of which provide valuable guidance to the Board and qualify him to continue to serve as director.

James C. Smith, 70, has been a director since October 2002 and Chairman of the Board since August 2004. Until its sale in 2004, Mr. Smith was Chairman of the Board of First Health Group Corp., a national health benefits company. He also served as First Health s Chief Executive Officer from January 1984 through January 2002 and President from January 1984 to January 2001. Mr. Smith is a director of various private companies. Mr. Smith s long-time expertise and experience as the founder, senior-most executive and chairman of the board of a successful large public company provides a unique perspective and insight into management and operational issues faced by the Board, Audit Committee and our CEO. This experience, coupled with Mr. Smith s personal leadership qualities, qualify him to continue to serve as director, and as Chairman of the Board.

Jeffrey W. Ubben, 49, has been a director since June 2004. Mr. Ubben is a founder, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer of ValueAct Capital, an investment partnership, which owns 7.3% of our Common Stock as of the date of this Proxy Statement. Prior to founding ValueAct Capital in 2000, Mr. Ubben was a Managing Partner at Blum Capital Partners for more than five years. Previously, Mr. Ubben spent eight years at Fidelity Investments where he managed the Fidelity Value Fund. Mr. Ubben is also a director of Sara Lee Corporation and Misys, plc, a former chairman and director of Martha Stewart Living Omnimedia, Inc., and a former director of Acxiom Corporation, Catalina Marketing Corporation, Omnicare Inc., Per-Se Technologies, Inc., Mentor Corporation and several other private companies. Mr. Ubben is investment banking and capital markets expertise and his management and executive leadership experience, combined with his extensive working knowledge of Gartner, its financial model and core financial strategies (resulting from ValueAct is long-term substantial investment in Gartner), provide valuable insight to the Board and Compensation Committee as it works with management to maximize shareholder value, and qualify him to continue to serve as a director.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

Directors who are also employees, or directors who we are contractually obligated to appoint to the Board (none as of the date of this Proxy Statement), receive no fees for their services as directors. All other directors receive the following compensation for their services:

Annual Fee:

\$50,000 per director and an additional \$60,000 for our non-executive Chairman of the Board, payable in arrears in four equal quarterly installments, on the first business day of each quarter. These amounts are paid in common stock equivalents (CSEs) granted under the Company s 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2003 Plan), except that a director may elect to receive up to 50% of this fee in cash. The CSEs convert into Common Stock on the date the director s continuous status as a director terminates, unless the director elects accelerated release as provided in the 2003 Plan. The number of CSEs awarded is determined by dividing the aggregate director fees owed for a quarter on the first business day following the close of that quarter by the closing price of the Common Stock on that date.

Annual Committee Chair Fee:

\$5,000 for the chair of each of our Compensation and Governance Committees and \$10,000 for the chair of our Audit Committee. Amounts are payable in the same manner as the Annual Fee.

Annual Committee Member Fee:

\$5,000 for each of our Compensation and Governance Committee members and \$10,000 for each Audit Committee member. Committee chairs receive both a committee chair fee and a committee member fee. Amounts are payable in the same manner as the Annual Fee.

Annual Equity Grant:

\$70,000 in value of restricted stock units (RSUs), awarded annually on the date of the Annual Meeting. The number of RSUs awarded is determined by dividing \$70,000 by the closing price of the Common Stock on the award date. The restrictions lapse one year after grant subject to continued service through that date.

Attendance Fee for Board Meetings:

None; we reimburse directors for their expenses to attend meetings.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

This table sets forth compensation earned or paid in cash, and the grant date fair value of equity awards made, to our non-management directors on account of services rendered as a director in 2010. Mr. Hall receives no compensation for service as director.

Name	Fees Earned Or Paid in Cash (\$)(1)	Stock Awards (\$)(2)	Total (\$)
Michael J. Bingle	55.000	70,000	125,000
Richard J. Bressler	70,000	70,000	140,000
Karen E. Dykstra	60,000	70,000	130,000
Russell P. Fradin	55,000	70,000	125,000
Anne Sutherland Fuchs	65,000	70,000	135,000
William O. Grabe	60,000	70,000	130,000
Steven G. Pagliuca	50,000	70,000	120,000
James C. Smith	120,000	70,000	190,000
Jeffrey W. Ubben (3)	125,000		125,000

⁽¹⁾ Includes amounts earned in 2010 and paid in cash and/or common stock equivalents (CSEs) on account of (i) a \$50,000 annual director fee; (ii) an additional \$60,000 fee for the Chairman of the Board (James C. Smith), (iii) a \$5,000 annual fee for each committee membership (\$10,000 for audit); and (iv) an additional \$5,000 fee for service as a committee chairman

- (2) Represents the grant date value of an annual equity award computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 718, consisting of 2,783 restricted stock units (RSUs) that vest one year from the award date, which was June 3, 2010, the date of the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, subject to continued service through that date. The number of RSUs awarded was calculated by dividing \$70,000 by the closing price of our Common Stock on the award date (\$25.15).
- (3) In 2010, Mr. Ubben received the value of the annual director equity award in cash due to his affiliation with ValueAct Capital.

RECOMMENDATION OF OUR BOARD

Our Board unanimously recommends that you vote FOR management s ten nominees for election to the Board of Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Gartner is committed to maintaining strong corporate governance practices. Our Board Principles and Practices (the Board Guidelines), available at *www.investor.gartner.com* under the Corporate Governance link, are periodically reviewed and revised in light of legal and regulatory developments, as well as emerging best practices, by our Governance Committee and Board, most recently in October 2010.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Our Board Guidelines require that our Board be comprised of a majority of directors who meet the criteria for independence from management set forth by the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in its corporate governance standards.

Our committee charters likewise require that our standing Audit, Compensation and Governance/ Nominating Committees be comprised only of independent directors. Additionally, the Audit Committee members must be independent under Section 10A-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), and the Compensation Committee members must be independent under Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act and qualify as outside directors under regulations promulgated under Section 162(m) (Section 162(m)) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code).

Utilizing all of these criteria, as well as all relevant facts and circumstances, the Board annually assesses the independence from management of all non-management directors and committee members by reviewing the commercial, financial, familial, employment and other relationships between each director and the Company, its auditors and other companies that do business with Gartner.

After analysis and recommendation by the Governance Committee, the Board determined that all of our non-management directors (Michael Bingle, Richard Bressler, Karen Dykstra, Russell Fradin, Anne Sutherland Fuchs, William Grabe, Stephen Pagliuca, James Smith and Jeffrey Ubben) are independent under the NYSE standards; that our Audit Committee members (Ms. Dykstra and Messrs. Bressler and Smith) are also independent under Section 10A-3 of the Exchange Act; and that our Compensation Committee members (Ms. Fuchs and Messrs. Fradin and Ubben) are independent under Exchange Act Rule 16b-3 and qualify as outside directors under Code Section 162(m) regulations.

The Governance Committee and the Board specifically addressed the stock ownership by ValueAct (7.3% of our Common Stock as of the date of this Proxy Statement), and the affiliation of Mr. Ubben with ValueAct. After consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances, the Board concluded that the fact of this ownership in and of itself did not impair Mr. Ubben s independence from management.

BOARD LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE

The leadership of our Board of Directors rests with our independent Chairman of the Board, Mr. James C. Smith. Gartner believes that the separation of functions between the CEO and Chairman of the Board provides independent leadership of the Board in the exercise of its management oversight responsibilities, increases the accountability of the CEO and creates transparency into the relationship among executive management, the Board of Directors and the stockholders. Additionally, in view of Mr. Smith s extensive experience as a chief executive officer of a major corporation, he is able to provide an independent point of view to our CEO on important management and operational issues.

RISK OVERSIGHT

Management, through the monthly meeting of the executive operating committee, deals with emerging operational and strategic risks facing the Company. Additionally, management believes that, through its Risk function, as well as through its review and testing of internal controls over financial reporting, it maintains robust financial statement risk assessment and risk management processes. The Risk function (which includes Internal Audit) conducts an annual company-wide risk assessment, from which areas of potential risk are identified and an internal audit plan is developed. Internal Audit examines risk areas and makes suggestions to management to ameliorate any identified risk. Management s Disclosure Controls Committee likewise reviews the adequacy of the Company s risk factor disclosures on a quarterly basis.

The Risk function reports directly to the Audit Committee, and provides the committee with a report each quarter. The committee reviews the results of the risk assessment process and the proposed internal audit plan. Subsequent quarterly meetings include an update on ongoing internal audit activities including results of recent audits and any changes to the audit plan and insurance updates. Risk also meets with the Audit Committee in executive session on a quarterly basis. At the Audit Committee meetings, areas of potential risk are identified and discussed by management and the committee; the committee often suggests additional areas that may warrant the attention of the Risk function.

As noted above, the Company maintains internal controls and procedures over financial reporting that are updated and tested annually. Any internal control deficiencies and the status of remediation efforts likewise are reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

Any areas of significant risk are brought to the attention of the full Board by the Audit Committee. In addition, the Company s strategic objectives and activities are discussed with the Board and approved annually.

Risk Assessment of Compensation Policies and Practices

Management has conducted a risk assessment of the Company s compensation policies and practices, including all executive, non-executive and business unit compensation policies and practices, as well as the variable compensation policies applicable to our global sales force. The results of this assessment have been reported to the Compensation Committee. Management has concluded and the Compensation Committee has agreed that no Company compensation policies and practices create risks that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND ANNUAL MEETING ATTENDANCE

Our Board held four meetings during 2010. During 2010, all of our directors attended 100% of all Board and committee meetings held (during the periods in which such director served as a director and/or committee member.) At each Board and committee meeting, the non-management directors met in executive session. James C. Smith, our non-executive Chairman of the Board, presided over these executive sessions at the Board meetings, and each committee chairperson presided over the executive sessions at their respective committee meetings. Directors are welcome, but not required, to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders. In 2010, only Mr. Hall attended the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

COMMITTEES GENERALLY AND CHARTERS

As noted above, our Board has three standing committees: Audit, Compensation and Governance, and all committee members have been determined by our Board to be independent under applicable standards. Our Board of Directors has approved a written charter for each committee which is reviewed annually and

revised as appropriate, most recently in October 2010. A current copy of each charter is available at *www.investor.gartner.com* under the Corporate Governance link. See Miscellaneous Available Information on page 45 below.

The table below provides 2010 committee information for each of the Board Committees:

Name	Audit	Governance	Compensation
Members:		V	
Michael J. Bingle		X	
Richard J. Bressler	X (Chair)		
Karen E. Dykstra	X		
Russell P. Fradin			Χ
Anne Sutherland Fuchs		Χ	X (Chair)
William O. Grabe		X (Chair)	
Stephen G. Pagliuca			
James C. Smith	X		
Jeffrey W. Ubben			X
Meetings Held in 2010:	5	4	5

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Our Governance/Nominating Committee (the Governance Committee), considers such matters as:

- the size, composition and organization of our Board;
- the independence of directors;
- our corporate governance policies, including our Board Principles and Practices;
- the criteria for membership as a director and the selection of individuals for election to the Board;
- · committee assignments;
- the form and amount of director compensation;
- the performance evaluation of our CEO and management succession planning; and
- annual Board and committee performance evaluations.

While the Governance Committee has not specified minimum qualifications for candidates it recommends, it will consider the qualifications, skills, expertise, qualities, diversity, age, availability and experience of all candidates that are presented for consideration. The Board utilizes a concept of diversity that extends beyond race, gender and national origin to encompass the viewpoints, professional experience and other individual qualities and attributes of candidates that will enable the Board to select candidates who are best able to carry out the Board s responsibilities and complement the mix of talent and experience represented on the Board. In connection with its annual evaluation, the Board considers the appropriateness of the qualifications of existing directors given then current needs.

Candidates for Board nomination may be brought to the attention of the Governance Committee by current Board members, management, stockholders or other persons. All potential new candidates are fully evaluated by the Governance Committee, and then considered by the entire Board for nomination.

Stockholders wishing to recommend director candidates for consideration by the Governance Committee may do so by writing to the Chairman of the Governance/Nominating Committee, c/o Corporate Secretary, Gartner, Inc., 56 Top Gallant Road, P.O. Box 10212, Stamford, CT 06904-2212, and indicating the recommended candidate s name, biographical data, professional experience and any other qualifications.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Gartner has a separately designated standing audit committee established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. Our Board has determined that both Ms. Dykstra and Mr. Bressler qualify as audit committee financial experts, as defined by the rules of the SEC, and have the requisite accounting or related financial management expertise required by the NYSE corporate governance listing standards, and that all members are financially literate as required by the NYSE corporate governance listing standards.

Our Audit Committee serves as an independent body to assist in Board oversight of:

- · the integrity of the Company s financial statements;
- the Company s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
- the independent auditor s qualifications and independence; and
- the Company s Risk and Internal Audit functions.

Additionally, the Committee:

- is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of our independent auditors;
- · approves the engagement letter describing the scope of the annual audit;
- approves fees for audit and non-audit services;
- provides an open avenue of communication among the independent auditors, the Risk and Internal Audit functions, management and the Board;
- resolves disagreements, if any, between management and the independent auditors regarding financial reporting for the purpose of issuing an audit report in connection with our financial statements; and
- prepares the Audit Committee Report required by the SEC and included in this Proxy Statement on page 45 below.

The independent auditors report directly to the Audit Committee. By meeting with independent auditors and internal auditors, and operating and financial management personnel, the Audit Committee oversees matters relating to accounting standards, policies and practices, any changes thereto and the effects of any changes on our financial statements, financial reporting practices and the quality and adequacy of internal controls. Additionally our Internal Audit function reports directly to the Audit Committee. After each Audit Committee meeting, the Committee meets separately with the independent auditors and separately with the internal auditors, without management present.

The Audit Committee has established procedures for (i) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, and (ii) the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters. A toll-free phone number that is managed by a third party is available for confidential and anonymous submission of concerns relating to accounting, auditing and other illegal or unethical matters. All submissions are reported to the General Counsel and, in turn, to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has the power and funding to retain independent counsel and other advisors as it deems necessary to carry out its duties.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee has responsibility for administering and approving all elements of compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers. It also approves, by direct action or through delegation, all equity awards, grants, and related actions under the provisions of our 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 2003 Plan), and administers the 2003 Plan. The Compensation Committee is also responsible for:

- participating in the evaluation of CEO performance (with the input and oversight of the Governance Committee and the Chairman of the Board);
- · approving the peer group established for executive compensation benchmarking purposes; and
- providing oversight in connection with company-wide compensation programs.

Finally, the Committee reviewed and approved the Compensation Discussion and Analysis contained in this Proxy Statement, recommended its inclusion herein (and in our 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K) and issued the related report to stockholders as required by the SEC (see Compensation Committee Report on page 24 below).

Each of Mercer (US) Inc. (Mercer) and Exequity LLP (Exequity) were retained (Mercer through August 2009 and Exequity thereafter) by the Committee to provide information, analyses, and advice to the Compensation Committee during various stages of 2010 executive compensation planning, and each reported directly to the Compensation Committee chair. In the course of conducting their respective activities, these consultants attended meetings of the Committee held during their engagement and briefed the Compensation Committee on executive compensation trends generally.

All of the decisions with respect to determining the amount or form of executive compensation under the Company s executive compensation programs are made by the Committee alone and may reflect factors and considerations other than the information and advice provided by its consultants. Please refer to the Compensation Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 17 for a more detailed discussion of the Committee s activities with respect to executive compensation.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation. During 2010, no member of the Compensation Committee served as an officer or employee of the Company, was formerly an officer of the Company or had any relationship with the Company required to be disclosed under Transactions With Related Persons. Additionally, during 2010, no executive officer of the Company: (i) served as a member of the compensation committee (or full board in the absence of such a committee) or as a director of another entity, one of whose executive officers served on our Compensation Committee; or (ii) served as a member of the compensation committee (or full board in the absence of such a committee) of another entity, one of whose executive officers served on our Board.

DIRECTOR STOCK OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

The Board believes directors should have a financial interest in the Company. Accordingly, each director is required to own at least 10,000 shares of our Common Stock. New directors have three years from election or appointment to comply with the policy as follows: 25% within one year of election or appointment; 50% within two years of election or appointment; and 100% within three years of election or appointment. We permit directors to apply deferred and unvested equity awards towards satisfying these requirements. All of our directors are in compliance with these guidelines.

CODE OF ETHICS

Gartner has adopted a CEO & CFO Code of Ethics which applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, controller and other financial managers, and a Code of Conduct, which applies to all Gartner officers, directors and employees. All of these codes are available at *www.investor.gartner.com* under Corporate Governance. At least annually, each director and each member of senior management must affirm his or her compliance with the Code of Conduct. See Miscellaneous Available Information below.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following individuals were serving as our executive officers on April 1, 2011:

Name	Age	Title
Eugene A. Hall	54	Chief Executive Officer & Director
Kendall B. Davis	42	Senior Vice President, End User Programs
Alwyn Dawkins	45	Senior Vice President, Gartner Events
David Godfrey	40	Senior Vice President, Global Sales
Darko Hrelic	54	Senior Vice President & Chief Information Officer
Robin B. Kranich	40	Senior Vice President, Human Resources
Dale Kutnick	61	Senior Vice President, Executive Programs
Christopher J. Lafond	45	Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Lewis G. Schwartz	60	Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Corporate Secretary
Peter Sondergaard	46	Senior Vice President, Research
Per Anders Waern	49	Senior Vice President, Gartner Consulting
Michael Yoo	42	Senior Vice President, High Tech & Telecom Programs

Eugene A. Hall has been our Chief Executive Officer and a director since 2004. Prior to joining Gartner, Mr. Hall was a senior executive at Automatic Data Processing, Inc., a Fortune 500 global technology and services company, serving most recently as President, Employers Services Major Accounts Division, a provider of human resources and payroll services. Prior to joining ADP in 1998, Mr. Hall spent 16 years at McKinsey & Company, most recently as Director.

Kendall B. Davis has been our Senior Vice President, End User Programs since May 2008. Prior thereto, he served as Senior Vice President, High Tech & Telecom Programs, and as Senior Vice President, Strategy, Marketing and Business Development. Prior to joining Gartner in 2005, Mr. Davis spent ten years at McKinsey & Company, where he was a partner assisting clients in the IT industry.

Alwyn Dawkins has been our Senior Vice President, Gartner Events, since May 2008. Previously at Gartner, he served as group vice president, Asia/Pacific Sales, based in Sydney, Australia, and prior thereto, as Group Vice President, Gartner Events, where he held global responsibility for exhibit and sponsorship sales across the portfolio of Gartner events. Prior to joining Gartner in 2002, Mr. Dawkins spent ten years at Richmond Events, culminating in his role as Executive Vice President responsible for its North American business.

David Godfrey has been our Senior Vice President, Global Sales, since April 2010. Most recently, Mr. Godfrey was the leader of Gartner s North American field sales, and prior to this role, he led Gartner s Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA) and the Americas inside sales organizations. Before joining Gartner in 1999 as a sales executive, David spent seven years in business development at Exxon Mobil.

Darko Hrelic has been our Senior Vice President & Chief Information Officer since January 2007. Prior to joining Gartner, he spent five years at Automatic Data Processing, Inc., most recently as Vice President and Chief Technology Officer in ADP s Employers Services Division. Prior to joining ADP, Mr. Hrelic spent over 21 years at IBM, principally at the TJ Watson Research Center.

Robin B. Kranich has been our Senior Vice President, Human Resources, since May 2008. Prior thereto, she served as Senior Vice President, End User Programs and as Senior Vice President, Research Operations and Business Development. During her more than 17 years at Gartner, Ms. Kranich has held various additional roles, including Senior Vice President and General Manager of Gartner EXP, Vice President and Chief of Staff to Gartner s president and various sales and sales management roles. Prior to joining Gartner in 1994, Ms. Kranich was part of the Technology Advancement Group at Marriott International.

Dale Kutnick has been our Senior Vice President, Executive Programs since February 2007. Prior to that, he served as Senior Vice President and Director of Research. Prior to joining Gartner in 2005, Mr. Kutnick was the co-founder, Chairman of the Board and Research Director of Meta Group, Inc., where he spent 14 years. Prior to co-founding Meta, Mr. Kutnick was Executive Vice President, Research at Gartner, and Executive Vice President of Gartner Securities.

Christopher J. Lafond has been our Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer since 2003. Prior thereto, he served as Chief Financial Officer for Gartner s North America and Latin America operations, Group Vice President and North American Controller, Director of Finance, Vice President of Finance and Assistant Controller. Prior to joining Gartner in 1995, Mr. Lafond was Senior Financial Planner at International Business Machines Corporation and an analyst in fixed-income asset management at J.P. Morgan Investment Management.

Lewis G. Schwartz has been our Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Corporate Secretary since 2001. Prior to joining Gartner, Mr. Schwartz was a partner with the law firm of Shipman & Goodwin LLP, serving on the firm s management committee. Before joining Shipman & Goodwin, Mr. Schwartz was a partner with Schatz & Schatz, Ribicoff & Kotkin, an associate at Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom in New York City, and an assistant district attorney in New York County (Manhattan).

Peter Sondergaard has been our Senior Vice President, Research since 2004. During his 22 years at Gartner, Mr. Sondergaard has held various roles, including Head of Research for the Technology & Services Sector, Hardware & Systems Sector, Vice President and General Manager for Gartner Research

EMEA. Prior to joining Gartner, Mr. Sondergaard was research director at International Data Corporation in Europe.

Per Anders Waern has been our Senior Vice President, Gartner Consulting since January 2008. Since joining Gartner in 1998, Mr. Waern has held senior consulting roles principally in EMEA, and served most recently as head of Gartner s global core consulting team. Prior to joining Gartner, Mr. Waern led corporate IT strategy at Vattenfall in Sweden.

Michael Yoo has been our Senior Vice President, High Tech & Telecom Programs since May 2008. Prior to assuming this role, he played a lead role at Gartner in developing and launching new role-based products for both technology providers and CIOs as the head of product development for the High-Tech & Telecom Programs team. Prior to joining Gartner in 2006, he spent four years as a management consultant at McKinsey & Company, serving clients in the high-tech industry. He spent the first ten years of his career as a research physicist, leading nanotechnology research and development efforts at IBM Research, Philips Research and Bell Laboratories.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This section of the Proxy Statement includes the following:

- The Executive Summary, which highlights our 2010 corporate performance, our pay-for-performance approach and our
 compensation practices, all of which we believe are relevant to stockholders as they consider their votes on Proposal Two
 (advisory vote on executive compensation, or Say-on-Pay) and Proposal Three (advisory vote on the frequency of future
 stockholder advisory votes on executive compensation, or Say When on Pay).
- The Compensation Discussion and Analysis, or CD&A, which describes and explains compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid to: our CEO, Eugene A. Hall; our CFO, Christopher J. Lafond; and our next three most highly compensated executive officers. Lewis G. Schwartz, our SVP, General Counsel & Corporate Secretary; Per Anders Waern, our SVP, Gartner Consulting; and Dale Kutnick, our SVP, Executive Programs in 2010. Collectively, we refer to these five individuals in this Proxy Statement as our. Named Executive Officers.
- The Compensation Tables and narrative disclosures which report and describe the compensation and benefit amounts paid to our NEOs in 2010.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Record Corporate Performance in 2010

2010 was a year of record achievements for Gartner. We achieved year-over-year Contract Value, EBITDA and Revenue growth of 20%, 21% and 13%, respectively, excluding the impact of foreign exchange. Contract Value (CV), an internal measurement of the annualized value of all subscription research contracts in effect at a specific point in time, reached a record level of \$978 million, as did EBITDA which rose to \$230 million and Revenues which rose to \$1.29 billion. Five year CAGR for CV was 11% and five-year CAGR for EBITDA was 18%. Additionally, our Common Stock rose 84% in 2010, as compared to the S&P 500 and NASDAQ, which rose 13% and 17%, respectively. Total stockholder return was 84%, 89% and 157% on a 1, 3 and 5 year basis, significantly out-performing the S&P 500 and NASDAQ indices for the corresponding periods. In 2010, we returned almost \$100 million to our stockholders through stock buybacks. The charts below (dollars in millions) demonstrate these results.

[Charts follow on next page]

Pay for Performance

As discussed in greater detail under Compensation Practices below, and in our CD&A, our executive compensation is heavily weighted towards performance-based compensation. This includes all short-term incentive compensation (cash bonuses) and 70% of annual long-term incentive compensation (equity awards that vest over a four year period). This compensation plan design has successfully motivated senior management to drive outstanding corporate performance since it was first implemented in 2006, as illustrated by the charts above. Through aggressive cost cutting and operational efficiency, product innovation and targeted investments, Gartner successfully weathered the 2008 2009 severe global economic down turn and returned to double digit EBITDA and CV growth in 2010. Accordingly, in 2010, our executive officers cash and equity incentive compensation payments were more than target amounts because we exceeded the performance objectives applicable to those compensation elements. We achieved 111% of our EBITDA objective and 104% of our CV objective, on a foreign exchange neutral basis and after giving effect to the AMR Research, Inc. and Burton Group, Inc. acquisitions completed at the end of 2009.

Compensation Practices

We believe that our compensation practices motivate our executives to achieve our operating plans, encourage retention and ensure that our executive officers execute our corporate strategy without taking undue risks, and are consistent with prevailing best practices trends. These practices include the following:

- We recently amended our CEO s employment agreement to provide for a double trigger for severance benefits payable upon a change in control, and to eliminate the Company s obligation to provide excise tax gross up payments in connection with change in control benefits. See the discussion of Mr. Hall s employment agreement beginning on page 28.
- Other than our CEO, all executive officers are at-will employees of the Company.
- Almost 90% of our CEO s target executive compensation (75% in the case of our other executive officers) is variable in the form
 of bonus and equity awards.
- In the case of our CEO, 80% of his compensation is in the form of equity awards (not less than 60% in the case of other executive officers).
- 70% of executive equity awards and 100% of executive bonus awards are performance-based and subject to forfeiture in the event the Company fails to achieve performance objectives established by our Compensation Committee.
- 30% of executive equity awards will only have value if our stock price increases from the grant date price.
- All equity awards vest over 4 years, subject to continued employment, thereby encouraging retention and ensuring that
 executive rewards align with stockholder value creation over the long-term.
- The potential annual payout on incentive compensation elements is limited to 2 times the target amounts for the CEO and all other executive officers.

- We eliminated tax gross-ups on executive perguisites several years ago.
- We have adopted stock ownership guidelines for our executive officers.
- We will adopt a formal clawback policy that complies with the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the Dodd-Frank Act) as soon as the SEC implements applicable rules.
- We have a long standing insider trading policy that requires pre-clearance before any executive officer may engage in any transactions in our Common Stock.
- We have long standing codes of conduct and ethical behavior that mandate ethical and legal behavior standards for all employees, wherever located.
- We have a long standing policy on the timing of equity award grants, and do not make grants to executive officers during closed trading windows.
- Each year we assess the risk inherent in our compensation and benefit programs, both at the executive level and company-wide, and we have concluded that our programs do not create any unreasonable risks for the Company.
- Our executive compensation programs are subject to a thorough oversight process that entails Compensation Committee
 review and approval of program design and practices, benchmarking against external practices and securing advice from
 independent compensation consultants that report to the Compensation Committee.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This discussion explains all principal elements of the Company s compensation of our NEOs, including (i) the objectives of the Company s compensation policies; (ii) what the compensation program is designed to reward; (iii) each element of compensation; (iv) why the Company chooses to pay each element; (v) how the Company determines the amount (and, where applicable, the formula) for each element to pay; and (vi) how each compensation element and the Company s decisions regarding that element fit into the Company s overall compensation objectives and affect decisions regarding other elements.

The Objectives of the Company s Compensation Policies

The objectives of our compensation policies are threefold:

to attract, motivate and retain highly talented, creative and entrepreneurial individuals by paying market-based compensation;

to motivate our executives to maximize the performance of our Company through pay-for-performance compensation components based on the achievement of corporate performance targets that are aggressive, but attainable, given economic conditions; and

to ensure that, as a public company, our compensation structure and levels are reasonable from a stockholder perspective.

What the Compensation Program Is Designed to Reward

Our guiding philosophy is that the more executive compensation is linked to corporate performance, the stronger the inducement is for management to strive to improve Gartner's performance. In addition, we believe that the design of the total compensation package must be competitive with the marketplace from which we hire our executive talent in order to achieve our objectives and attract and retain individuals who are critical to our long-term success. Our compensation program for executive officers is designed to compensate individuals for achieving and exceeding corporate performance objectives. We believe this type of compensation encourages outstanding team performance (not simply individual performance), which builds stockholder value.

Both short-term and long-term incentive compensation is earned by executives only upon the achievement by the Company of certain measurable performance objectives that are deemed by the Compensation

Committee and management to be critical to the Company s short-term and long-term success. The amount of compensation ultimately earned will increase or decrease depending upon Company performance and the underlying price of our Common Stock (in the case of long-term incentive compensation).

Each Element of Compensation and Why the Company Chooses to Pay Each Element

Principal Compensation Elements. To achieve the objectives noted above, we have designed executive compensation to consist of three principal elements:

base salary,

short-term incentives (cash bonuses) and

long-term incentives (equity awards under our 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan).

We pay competitive salaries to attract and retain the executive talent necessary to develop and implement our corporate strategy and business plan. We pay short-term and long-term incentive compensation to motivate our executives to generate outstanding performance, to align compensation paid with proven results that benefit our stockholders, and to make our executives stakeholders in the success of our Company. In addition, we provide perquisites to our executive officers, including life and long-term disability insurance, similar to those provided to other employees.

How the Company Determines Executive Compensation

In General. Despite the lingering weakness in the economy at the end of 2009, the Company set aggressive performance goals in planning 2010 executive compensation requiring substantial growth in the two key performance metrics to order for our executives to earn target compensation, as discussed in greater detail below.

The Compensation Committee established performance objectives for short-term (bonuses) and long-term (equity) incentive awards at levels that it believed would motivate performance and be adequately challenging, given the economic outlook in early 2010. The performance objectives were intended to compel the level of performance necessary to enable the Company to achieve its operating plan for 2010, despite the continuing existence of uncertain economic conditions and a still fragile recovery.

As in prior years, the short and long-term incentive compensation elements provided executives with opportunities to increase their total compensation package based upon the over-achievement of corporate performance objectives; similarly, in the case of under-achievement of corporate performance objectives, the value of these incentive elements would fall below their target value (with the possibility of total forfeiture of the short-term element and 70% of the long-term element), and total compensation would decrease correspondingly. We assigned greater weight to the long-term incentive compensation element, as compared to the salary and short-term elements, in order to promote decision-making that would deliver top corporate performance, align management to stockholder interests and retain executives. Potential or actual gains or losses from previously granted long-term awards did not impact decisions pertaining to the 2010 compensation elements or the 2010 aggregate executive compensation package.

Salary, short-term and long-term incentive compensation levels for executive officers (other than the CEO) are recommended by the CEO and subject to approval by the Compensation Committee. In formulating his recommendation to the Compensation Committee, the CEO undertakes a performance review of these executives and considers input from human resources personnel at the Company, input from the compensation consultant and benchmarking data (discussed below).

Salary, short-term and long-term incentive compensation levels for the CEO s compensation are established by the Compensation Committee within the parameters of Mr. Hall s employment agreement with the Company. In making its determination with respect to Mr. Hall s compensation, the Compensation Committee: evaluates his performance in conjunction with the Governance Committee and after soliciting additional input from the Chairman of the Board and other directors; considers input from the Committee s compensation consultant; and reviews benchmarking data pertaining to CEO compensation practices at other relevant companies. See Employment Agreements with Executive Officers Mr. Hall below for a detailed discussion of Mr. Hall s agreement.

Effect of Stockholder Advisory Votes. Proposal Two contained in this Proxy Statement represents the first request by the Board for a stockholder advisory vote on executive compensation as required by Section 14A of the Exchange Act (which was added by the Dodd-Frank Act). In the future, the Company and the Compensation Committee will consider the results of such vote in executive compensation planning activities; however, the vote is advisory in nature only, and will not be binding upon the Company, the Compensation Committee or the Board in determining executive compensation elements.

Benchmarking. For 2010 executive compensation planning purposes which began mid-year in 2009, we undertook a competitive analysis of our executive compensation programs (the Executive Compensation Review) for use by management as one factor, among others, in planning our 2010 executive compensation program. The Executive Compensation Review presented comparative data on salary, short-term incentive (bonus) and long-term incentive (equity) compensation paid to individuals occupying comparable positions at a peer group of companies of similar industry and size, and was based upon 2008 executive compensation data contained in 2009 proxy statements for this peer group.

Management identified and reviewed with Mercer the composition of a peer group of companies to use for benchmarking purposes. The peer group consisted of 10 US based public companies in the high tech industry, that operate with a particular focus on software and IT services, that compete with Gartner for executive talent from both a hiring and retention standpoint and that approximated Gartner in terms of one or more of the following factors: revenues, net income, total assets, market capitalization and/or total employees, and that compete with Gartner for executive talent both from a hiring and a retention standpoint (the Peer Group). The Peer Group was approved by the Compensation Committee after Mercer concluded that the 10 companies continued to be appropriate for compensation comparison purposes. For 2010 compensation planning purposes, the Peer Group consisted of the following 10 companies:

Adobe Systems, Inc.

Moody s Corporation

Autodesk, Inc.

IMS Health Incorporated

BMC Software Inc.

Cadence Design Systems Inc.

Dun & Bradstreet Corp.

Intuit Inc.

Sybase, Inc.

Verisign, Inc.

To obtain information pertaining to the Named Executive Officers, the Company obtained the then most recent publicly available Peer Group proxy data for comparable positions, to the extent available, as well as the 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile data for base salary, total cash compensation (salary and bonus) and total direct compensation at target (salary, bonus and long-term incentive awards) by executive officer position that correlated to the top five executive officers.

According to the Executive Compensation Review, our 2009 executive compensation compared to that of the Peer Group (in percentiles) as follows:

Officer	Base Salary	Total Cash Compensation (Base Salary and Bonus)	Total Direct Compensation at Target (Base Salary, Bonus and Long-Term Incentive)			
CEO	< 25th	> 25th and < 50th	> 50th and < 75th			
CFO	> 25th and < 50th	> 50th and < 75th	> 50th and < 75th			
Top 5	< 25th	> 25th and < 50th	> 50th and < 75th			

Executive Compensation Elements Generally. The following bar chart illustrates the relative mix of target compensation elements for our executive officers. Long-term incentive compensation, which vests over a four year period, consists of performance-based restricted stock units (PSUs) and stock appreciation rights (SARs), and represents a majority of the compensation we pay to our executive officers. We allocate more heavily to long-term incentive compensation because we believe that it contributes to a greater degree to the retention of employees and to the delivery of top performance than does cash and short-term compensation.

Target Compensation Mix

Having made no merit increases in 2009 (other than to employees located in countries with high wage inflation or where increases were legally mandated), a 3% merit increase for the executive officers was instituted mid-year in 2010 (after business results confirmed accelerating growth first seen at the end of 2009), retroactive to April 1, 2010. This merit increase was applied to each element of executive compensation (base salary, short-term and long-term executive compensation).

Base Salary. We set base salaries of executive officers when they join the Company or are promoted to an executive role, by evaluating the responsibilities of the position, the experience of the individual and the marketplace in which we compete for the executive talent we need. In addition, where possible, we consider salary information for comparable positions for members of our Peer Group or other available benchmarking data.

In determining whether to award salary merit increases, we consider published projected U.S. salary increase data for the technology industry and generally (sources include Buck Consultants, Towers Watson and WorldatWork survey reports among others), as well as available world-wide salary increase data. Mr. Hall s salary increase is established each year by the Compensation Committee, in accordance with the terms of Mr. Hall s employment agreement and after completion of Mr. Hall s performance evaluation for the preceding year.

Short-Term Incentive Compensation (Cash Bonuses). All bonuses to executive officers are awarded pursuant to Gartner s Executive Performance Bonus Plan. This plan is designed to motivate executive officers to achieve goals relating to the performance of Gartner, its subsidiaries or business units, or other objectively determinable goals, and to reward them when those objectives are satisfied. We believe that the relationship between proven performance and the amount of short-term incentive compensation paid promotes, among executives, decision-making that increases stockholder value and promotes Gartner s success. If certain requirements are satisfied, bonuses awarded under this plan to eligible employees will qualify as deductible performance-based compensation within the meaning of Code Section 162(m).

In 2010, we designed the annual cash bonus component of incentive compensation to align pay with our short-term (annual) performance results. Bonus targets for all executive officers, including Mr. Hall, were based solely upon achievement of 2010 company-wide financial performance objectives (with no individual performance component). The financial objectives and weightings used for 2010 executive officer bonuses were 2010 Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA), which measures overall profitability from business operations (weighted 50%), and Contract Value (CV), which measures the annualized value attributable to all of our subscription-related research products, our largest business segment, that recognize revenue on a ratable basis, measured on a foreign exchange neutral basis at December 31, 2010 (weighted 50%). Management and our Compensation Committee believe that EBITDA and CV are the most significant measurements of profitability and business growth for our Company and that they have been used successfully for a number of years in driving business performance and determining executive compensation.

For 2010, each executive officer was assigned a bonus target that was expressed as a percentage of salary and varied from 40% to 100% of salary depending upon the executive s level of responsibility With respect to our Named Executive Officers, 2010 bonus targets, as a percentage of base salary, were 100% for Mr. Hall and 60% for each of Messrs. Lafond, Schwartz, Waern and Kutnick.

As noted above, the Company pegged target short-term incentive compensation performance objectives (EBITDA and CV) to the 2010 operating plan. Accordingly, the target performance objective amounts (achievement of which would result in 100% payment of target bonus) were: 2010 EBITDA \$208 million (representing 9% growth and weighted 50%) and Contract Value at December 31, 2010 \$941 million (representing 10% growth, measured on a foreign exchange neutral basis and weighted 50%). In each case, the growth percentages reflected in the 2010 operating plan were determined on an organic basis; i.e., after giving effect to EBITDA and CV acquired in connection with the AMR Research and Burton Group acquisitions. Final bonuses payable, as a percentage of target, could range from 0% (if both EBITDA and CV were less than approximately 73% of target) to a maximum 200% (if EBITDA were at least approximately 110.6% of target and CV was at least approximately 105.3% of target), depending upon the level of achievement of these objectives.

In 2010, the Company exceeded its target performance objectives, and the Compensation Committee determined that earned cash bonuses for executive officers were 186.8% of target bonus amounts based upon the final level of achievement of the applicable performance objectives as follows: EBITDA \$230 million and Contract Value \$978 million. These bonuses were paid in February 2011. See Summary Compensation Table Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation for the amount of cash bonuses earned by our Named Executive Officers in 2010.

Long-Term Incentive Compensation (Equity Awards). Promoting stock ownership is a key element of our compensation program philosophy. Stock-based incentive compensation awards—especially when they are assigned a combination of performance and time-based vesting criteria—induce enhanced performance, promote retention of executive officers and align executives—personal rewards with long-term stock price appreciation, thereby integrating management and stockholder interests. We have evaluated different types of long-term incentives based on their motivational value, cost to the Company and appropriate share utilization under our stockholder-approved 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2003 Plan). At the present time, our annual grants of long-term incentive awards to executives consist of stock-settled stock appreciation rights (SARs) and performance-based restricted stock units (PSUs), both of which vest 25% per year commencing one year from grant and on each anniversary thereof, subject to continued service on the vesting date. We believe that granting SARs and PSUs effectively focuses our executives on delivering long-term value growth for our stockholders.

SARs permit executives to benefit from an increase in stock price over time. SAR value can be realized only after the SAR vests. Our SARs are stock-settled and may be exercised seven years from grant. When the SAR is exercised, the executive receives shares of our Common Stock equal in value to the aggregate appreciation in the price of our Common Stock from the date of grant to the exercise date for all SARs exercised. Therefore, SARs only have value to the extent the price of our Common Stock exceeds the grant price of the SAR. In this way, SARs motivate our executives to increase stockholder value and thus align their interests with those of our stockholders.

PSUs offer executives the opportunity to receive our Common Stock contingent on the achievement of performance goals and continued service over the vesting period. PSU recipients are eligible to earn a target fixed number of shares if and to the extent stipulated one-year performance goals are achieved. They can earn more shares if the Company over-performs (up to 200% of their target number of shares), but they will earn fewer shares (potentially none) if the Company under-performs. Shares of Common Stock subject to earned PSU awards are issued to the executive on the date they vest. Released shares have value even if our Common Stock price does not increase, which is not the case with SARs. Accordingly, PSUs encourage executives to increase stockholder value while promoting executive retention over the long-term.

Individual executive award values vary with increasing levels of responsibility. Consistent with weightings in prior years, 30% of each executive s long-term incentive compensation award value was granted in SARs and 70% was granted in PSUs. PSUs deliver value utilizing fewer shares since the executive can earn the full share rather than just the appreciation in value over the grant price (as is the case with SARs). Additionally, the cost efficiency of PSUs enhances the Company s ability to conservatively utilize the 2003 Plan share pool, which contributed to the decision to convey a larger portion of the 2010 overall long-term incentive compensation value in PSUs than in SARs. For purposes of determining the number of SARs

awarded, the allocated SAR award value is divided by the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation on the date of grant using assumptions appropriate on that date. For purposes of determining the target number of PSUs awarded, the allocated target PSU award value is divided by the closing price of our Common Stock on the date of grant as reported by the New York Stock Exchange.

The Compensation Committee approved CV as the performance measure underlying PSUs awarded in 2010. As noted above, the 2010 target CV amount (resulting in 100% of the target number of PSUs becoming eligible to vest) was pegged to the 2010 operating plan and set at \$941 million measured at December 31, 2010, which represented growth of 10% as compared to 2009 (on a foreign exchange neutral basis and after giving effect to CV acquired in connection with the AMR Research and Burton Group acquisitions). The final number of PSUs that could be awarded ranged from 0 (if CV was less than approximately 73% of target) to a maximum 200% of target (if CV was at least approximately 105.3% of target).

As noted above, in 2010 CV was \$978 million, exceeding the target amount, which resulted in the payout of 173.7% of the target number of PSUs awarded. The PSUs were adjusted by this factor in February 2011 after certification of the achievement of this performance measure by the Compensation Committee without any modification by the Committee. See Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table Possible Payouts Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards and accompanying footnotes below for the actual number of SARs and PSUs awarded to our Named Executive Officers in 2010.

No performance objectives for any PSU intended to qualify under Code Section 162(m) (i.e., awards to executive officers) may be modified by the Committee. While the Committee does have discretion to modify other aspects of the awards (subject to the terms of the 2003 Plan), no modifications were made in 2010.

Additional Compensation Elements. In order to further achieve our first objective of providing a competitive compensation package with great retention value, we provide various other benefits to our executive officers that we believe are typically available to, and expected by, persons in senior business roles. Our basic executive perquisites program includes 35 days paid time off (PTO) annually, enhanced severance and change in control benefits (discussed below) and relocation services where necessary due to a promotion. In addition, in 2010 the Company ceased paying to the executive officers a \$15,000 fixed sum which in prior years was used by the executive to acquire perquisites of his or her choice; instead, this amount was allocated between each officer s 2010 base salary and target bonus. For more information concerning perquisites, see Other Compensation Table and accompanying footnotes below.

Mr. Hall s perquisites, severance and change in control benefits are governed by his employment agreement with the Company, which is discussed in detail below under Employment Agreements With Executive Officers.

We also maintain a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for our highly compensated employees, including our executive officers, to assist eligible participants with retirement and tax planning by allowing them to defer compensation in excess of amounts permitted to be deferred under our 401(k) plan. This plan allows eligible participants to defer up to 50% of base salary and/or 100% of bonus to a future period. In addition, as a further inducement to participation in this plan, the Company presently matches contributions by executive officers, subject to certain limits. For more information concerning this plan, see Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table and accompanying narrative and footnotes below. Finally, the Company maintains an employee stock purchase plan which is available to employees in the United States and several other countries at the present time.

Executive Stock Ownership and Clawback Policies

The Company has adopted stock ownership guidelines for our executive officers as follows: the CEO is required to hold shares of Common Stock with a value at least equal to six (6) times his base salary, and all other executive officers are required to hold shares of Common Stock with a value at least equal to three (3) times their base salary. The officers have five (5) years from appointment to accumulate this value. For purposes of computing the required holdings, officers may count shares directly held, as well as vested and unvested restricted stock units and PSUs, but not options or SARs. At December 31, 2010, our CEO and all other executive officers were in compliance with these guidelines.

In accordance with the requirements of Section 10D of the Exchange Act (which was added by the Dodd-Frank Act), the SEC has been directed to issue rules applicable to the national securities exchanges (including the NYSE on which our Common Stock is listed for trading) prohibiting the listing of any security of an issuer that does not provide for the recovery of erroneously awarded incentive-based compensation where there has been an accounting restatement; i.e., clawback policies. We are awaiting issuance of the SEC rules (expected in mid-2011) and, at that time, the Board will adopt a formal policy that complies with these rules.

Accounting and Tax Impact

In setting compensation, the Compensation Committee and management consider the potential impact of Code Section 162(m), which precludes a public corporation from deducting on its corporate income tax return individual compensation in excess of \$1 million for its chief executive officer or any of its three other highest-paid officers (other than the chief financial officer). Section 162(m) also provides for certain exemptions to this limitation, specifically compensation that is performance-based (within the meaning of Section 162(m)) and issued under a stockholder-approved plan. Our 2010 short-term incentive (bonus) awards were performance-based and were made pursuant to our stockholder approved Executive Performance Bonus Plan and, therefore, are deductible under Section 162(m). The PSU component of the 2010 long-term incentive award was performance-based and issued under the 2003 Plan, which has been approved by stockholders and, therefore, is deductible under Section 162(m). Although the Compensation Committee endeavors to maximize deductibility of compensation under Section 162(m), it maintains the discretion in establishing compensation elements to approve compensation that may not be deductible under Section 162(m), if the Committee believes the compensation element to be necessary or appropriate under the circumstances.

Grant of Equity Awards

The Board of Directors has a formal policy with respect to the grant of equity awards under our 2003 Plan. Equity awards may include stock options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), restricted stock awards (RSAs), restricted stock units (RSUs) and performance-based restricted stock units (PSUs). In 2010, all such awards to Named Executive Officers took the form of PSUs and SARs. Pursuant to the 2003 Plan, the Committee may not delegate its authority with respect to Section 16 persons, nor in any other way which would jeopardize the plan s qualification under Code Section 162(m) or Exchange Act Rule 16b-3. Accordingly, our policy specifies that all awards to our Section 16 executive officers must be approved by the Compensation Committee on or prior to the award grant date, and that all such awards will be made and priced on the date of Compensation Committee approval, except in the case of new hires, which is discussed below.

Consistent with the Plan, the Compensation Committee annually approves a delegation of authority to the CEO to make equity awards under the Plan to Gartner employees on account of new hires, retention or promotion without the approval of the Compensation Committee. The current delegation of authority specifies a maximum award value of \$100,000 per individual, and a maximum aggregate award value of \$1,000,000 for the calendar year. For purposes of this computation, in the case of RSAs and RSUs, value is calculated based upon the Fair Market Value (defined in the 2003 Plan as the closing price on the date of grant as reported by the New York Stock Exchange) of a share of our Common Stock, multiplied by the number of RSAs or RSUs awarded. In the case of options and SARs, the value of the award will be the Black-Scholes-Merton calculation of the value of the award using assumptions appropriate on the award date. Any awards made under this delegated authority are reported to the Compensation Committee at the next regularly scheduled committee meeting.

As discussed above, the structure and value of annual long-term incentive awards comprising the long-term incentive compensation element of our compensation package to executive officers are established and approved by the Compensation Committee in the first quarter of each year. The specific terms of the awards (number of PSUs and SARs and related performance criteria) are determined, and the awards are approved and made, on the same date and after the release of the Company s prior year financial results. New hire, retention and promotion awards to executive officers are recommended by the CEO to the Compensation Committee for its approval.

It is the Company s policy not to make equity awards to executive officers prior to the release of material non-public information. The 2010 long-term incentive awards to executive officers were approved by the Compensation Committee and made on February 11, 2010, after release of our 2009 financial results. The final number of PSUs issuable on account of the 2010 award was determined by the Compensation Committee on February 10, 2011 upon final determination by the Committee of the level of achievement of the related performance criteria and after release of our 2010 financial results. Generally speaking, awards for newly hired executives that are given as an inducement to joining the Company are made on the 15th or 30th day of the month first following the executive s start date (and after approval by the Compensation Committee), and retention and promotion awards are made on the 15th or 30th day of the month first following the date of Compensation Committee approval; however, we may delay making these awards pending the release of material non-public information.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of Gartner, Inc. has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management. Based upon this review and discussion, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the Company s proxy statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting.

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

Anne Sutherland Fuchs Russell P. Fradin Jeffrey W. Ubben

April 18, 2011

All compensation data contained in this Proxy Statement is stated in U.S. Dollars.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

This table describes compensation earned by our CEO, CFO and next three most highly compensated executive officers (the Named Executive Officers) in the years indicated. As you can see from the table and consistent with our compensation philosophy discussed above, long term incentive compensation in the form of equity awards comprises a significant portion of total compensation.

Name and Principal Position	Year	Base Salary (1)	Stock Awards (2)	Option Awards (2)	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (1), (3)	All Other Compensation (4)	Total
Eugene A. Hall, Chief Executive Officer							
(CEO) (5)	2010 2009 2008	745,982 724,065 718,793	4,154,405 4,033,400 4,033,400	1,780,457 1,728,600 1,728,600	1,407,140 724,065 766,495	90,360 102,756 122,218	8,178,344 7,312,886 7,369,506
Christopher J. Lafond, EVP & Chief Financial		,	, ,				
Officer (CFO)	2010 2009 2008	435,733 419,268 416,215	1,157,929 1,124,200 1,124,200	496,255 481,800 481,800	494,520 251,561 266,302	36,293 50,072 60,947	2,620,730 2,326,901 2,349,464
Lewis G. Schwartz, SVP, General Counsel &		,	,, ,,	101,000			_,0 .0, .0 .
Corporate Secretary	2010 2009 2008	390,606 375,134 372,403	578,237 561,400 561,400	247,821 240,600 240,600	443,571 225,081 238,270	40,401 51,574 62,145	1,700,636 1,453,789 1,474,818
Per Anders Waern, SVP, Gartner Consulting	2010 2009 2008	345,521 331,042 331,805	578,237 561,400 561,400	247,821 240,600 240,600	392,580 198,625 210,265	67,223 192,125 646,832	1,631,382 1,523,792 1,990,902
Dale Kutnick, SVP, Executive Programs (6)	2010 2008	345,480 328,591	578,237 561,400	247,821 240,600	392,623 210,238	36,402 45,726	1,600,563 1,386,555

- (1) All Named Executive Officers elected to defer a portion of their salary and/or bonus under the Company s Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan. Amounts reported include the deferred portion. See Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table below.
- (2) Represents the aggregate grant date fair value computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 for performance restricted stock units, or PSUs (Stock Awards), and for stock-settled stock appreciation rights, or SARs (Option Awards) granted to the Named Executive Officer in 2010. The value reported for the PSUs is based upon the probable outcome of the performance objective as of the grant date, which is consistent with the grant date estimate of the aggregate compensation cost to be recognized over the service period, excluding the effect of forfeitures, or the target grant date award value. The potential maximum value of the PSUs, assuming attainment of the highest level of the performance conditions, is 200% of the target value. There were no forfeitures applicable to the Named Executive Officers in 2010. See Note 9 Stock-Based Compensation in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 for additional information regarding the calculation of the grant date fair values of these awards.
- (3) Represents performance-based cash bonuses earned at December 31 of the applicable year and paid in the following February. See footnote (1) to Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table below for additional information.
- (4) See Other Compensation Table below for additional information.
- (5) Mr. Hall is a party to an employment agreement with the Company. See Employment Agreements With Executive Officers Mr. Hall below.
- (6) Mr. Kutnick was not a Named Executive Officer in 2009.

OTHER COMPENSATION TABLE

26

This table describes each component of the All Other Compensation column in the Summary Compensation Table.

		Lump Sum in Lieu of Specific Benefits	Company Match Under Defined Contribution Plans	Company Match Under Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Plans	Other	
Name	Year	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	Total
Eugene A. Hall	2010 2009 2008	15,000	9,050 9,050 8,500	52,202 53,022 54,643	29,108 25,684 59,075	90,360 102,756 122,218
Christopher J. Lafond	2010 2009 2008	15,000 25,619	9,050 9,050 8,500	20,892 20,823 21,598	6,351 5,199 5,230	36,293 50,072 60,947
Lewis G. Schwartz	2010 2009 2008	15,000 21,882	9,050 9,050 8,500	18,027 17,936 18,762	13,324 9,588 13,001	40,401 51,574 62,145
Per Anders Waern	2010 2009 2008	15,000 16,411	9,050 9,050 8,500	15,166 6,642	43,007 161,433 621,921	67,223 192,125 646,832
Dale Kutnick	2010 2008	21,882	9,050 8,500	15,163 6,944	12,189 8,400	36,402 45,726

- (1) Prior to 2010, Named Executive Officers received a lump sum payment in lieu of specific benefits, which the executive used to procure benefits of his or her choice. This benefit was suspended in early 2010.
- (2) Represents the Company s 4% matching and 1% profit sharing contributions to the Named Executive Officer s 401(k) account (subject to limitations).
- (3) Represents the Company s matching contribution to the executive s contributions to our Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan. See Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table below for additional information.
- (4) In addition to specified perquisites and benefits, includes other perquisites and personal benefits provided to the executive, none of which individually exceeded the greater of \$25,000 or 10% of the total amount of perquisites and personal benefits for the executive. Amounts paid to Mr. Waern include an auto allowance in the amount of \$21,250 paid in connection with his relocation from Sweden.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS TABLE

This table provides information about awards made to our Named Executive Officers in 2010 pursuant to non-equity incentive plans (our short-term incentive cash bonus program) and equity incentive plans (performance restricted stock units (PSUs) and stock appreciation rights (SARs) awards comprising long-term incentive compensation under our 2003 Plan).

		Possible Payouts Under Non- Equity Incentive Plan Awards (1)			Possible Payouts Under Incentive Plan Awards (2)			Exercise or Base		
		Equity moon	navo i ian	/ tiral do (1)	moone	vo i idii / wai	uo (L)	Price of	Value of	
									Stock and	
								Awards	Option	
	Grant	Threshold	Target	Maximum	Threshold	Target	Maximum	(\$/Sh)	Awards	
Name	Date	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(#)	(#)	(#)	(\$)(3)	(\$)(4)	
						188,323	376,646			
Eugene A. Hall	2/11/10				0	PSUs	PSUs		4,154,405	